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1. Name of Pro ' | i:
historic pame __Rothschild, A.M. & Company Store

gther names/site number Davis Store, Goldblatt's Bullding

|
2. Location :
street & number 333 SOULh State Street not fer publication ‘
city, town Chicagg ' ;Vﬁiﬂﬁ
st - 11lincis cods 1L county  Cook gode T
3, Claasification - —
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property

private building(s) Contributing Nonsontributing

public-local diatriet . buildings

public-State tite —_— — Rltes

pubiic-Federal ' structure ——— strudtures

object objects

_ 1 _ Total
Name of related muitiple property listing: ' Number of contributing resources previously

N/A : o listed in the National Register 0

4. State/Federal Agency Certlfication

As the designated authority under the Natlonal Historle Presarvation Act of 1965, as amended, | heraby cartify that this
nomination [_J request for determination of eliglbility meets the documantation standards for regliatering propsrties In the
Nati Register of Historic Piaces and meets the procsdurai and prolessional requirements set forth in 38 CER Pant 80.

my lorf] the prop: ste [_]doss not meet the National Register criteria. [_| ses continuation shest.
(0~4PFPF
Signature {ecnlfylng'offlélnl Date -
Diregetor, Tllinodis Historic Preservation Agency

State or Fedaral agency and bureay

in my oplnion, the proportyﬁ meets Ddon net mest the National Reglater criterta, Ds.o continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other officlal Date

State or Federal agenoy and bursau . e

8. National Park Service Cartification

|, hereby, certify that this property is:

[ Jentered in the Nationat Register.

(] see continuation sheet.

[Jdetermined etigibie for the National
Register. [ See continuation sheet,
determined not eligible for the
National Reglster.

other, (axplain:)

mmdmm”r ' Date of Action



|
'8, Function or Use :

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from Instructions)
Commerce/Trade Vacant/not in use
Department Store

7. Description

Architectural Classification _ ' Materials (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions)

foundation __ Stone

walls Terra cotta ;

__Movements/Chicaqo brick j;
2.Late 19th and 20th Century Revivals/ roof __Concrete ;]
Beaux-Arts other

Describe present and historic physical appearance. :

The Goldblatt's Building in Chicago was built in 1912 as the Rothschild & Company department store. It 1
was designed by the firm of Holabird & Roche and represents an important transitional example of the Chicago |
School of Architecture. Majestically occupying one half of a city block and containing 650,000 usable |
feet, this well-proportioned structure functions as an anchor at the south end of Chicago's historic State ‘
Street shopping area. ' |

The Rothschild's Building is'ten stories high, of steel frame construction and is clad with a buff glazed ‘
terra cotta skin. "In a gleaming white coating of enameled tarra cotta, ten stories high with thirty-eight ‘
elevators and seven miles of aisles, the new store was distinguished by delicate detailing, including a |
projecting cornice, and arcaded Tower (two Floors allowed it a Vighter appearae than some of its neighbors, |
although the Chicago Record-Herald stressed the massive character. News reports also emphasized the unusua) |
carar‘e taken to ma)\ke 7t fireproof, its specially created ventilation system, and the solidity of its construction.” |
(Harris, P, 148 . _ ' - L ' S

The building is in excellent state of preservation as evidenced by the existing intact terra cotta surface !‘
and ornamentation, especially at the ground floor and cornice levels,

however, into a highly orginal design.

On the street facades, the first two stories are treated as a base with arched openings at the second
story defining the two principal, high-ceilinged retai) floors of the building. The upper staries, which contained
the secondary sales departments, follow the traditional form associated with the Chicago School-Targe rectangular
openings with the Tong dimension horizomtal, each opening of glass fi1ling the entire bay. The generous triple
division Chicago windows-with a fixed single light in the center framed by smaller double light movable-sash
windows on either side-are attenuated by vertical piers and recessed spandrels in terra cotta that express
the skeletal building frame, offset by a proj ing molded course at every other story. The harfzontality
of the cellular vall openings reflects the individual open sales and stock areas within and provide a maximm
of needed 1ight to interjor spaces.

The white terra-cotta facade covers the southern and western facades and wraps around the east facade
along the alley for one bay. The east and north facades are faced in common brick, with irregular window
openings generally confined to the upper six stories. These windows are novable sash with three Tights in
each pane. Some windows on the north facade have been filled in at some time in the past.

The interior of the structure is also largley intact. It retains the original ornamenta) plaster colum
cladding and capitals in the lower two stories. There are original decorative cast iron staircases throughout. -
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There are three basement levels and ten stories above street level, Columns are spaced at 20 foot intervals with
152 on each floor, including those imbedded in the exterior walls. The interior is designed as retail space, open
except for the columns and adaptable to a variety of interior partitions. A floor plan of the interior developed by
the City of Chicago for conversion to a library is attached. ' o o
This commercial structure has remained virtually intact since its original construction, thereby offering
good visual documentation of the work of the Holabird & Roche firm, Their 1911 design for this structure was in
the vernacular of what came 10 be known as the Chicago School of Architecture: Tall, metal-framéd buildings that
discarded the heavy forms assoclated with wall-bearing construction and allowed minimal exterior wall surfaces
and maximum window area. The style was well-suited o the commercial purposes of this structure, '

The building is presently vacant and owned by the City of Chicago, which purchased it for use as a
library facility, and now intends to sell it for re-use, : '




City of Chicago
Harold Washinglon, Mayor

Department of Plannlsg

Elizabeth L. Hollander
Cominissioner

City Hall, Room 000

121 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, Nlineis 60602

(312) 744-4471

s BUILDING SIZE:

January 7, 1987

FACT SHEET FOR THE GOLDBLATT'S BUILDING AND SITE

LOCATION:

SITE SIZE:

HEIGHT:
AGE:

ORIGINAL ARCHITECT:
" ARCHITECTURE:

ZONING:

FLOOR AREA RATIO:

PUBLIC ACCESS:

SURROUNDING AREA:
FLOOR PLANS:

COORDINATING AGENCY:

CONTACT PERSON:

333 ‘South State Street, N.E. Corner State
and Van Buren

57,000 sq. ft. (396 ft. X 145 ft.) including
'-the Kee's Building area

- 740,000 gross sq. ft./

640,000 net sq. ft.

' _ 10 stories

.75 years old

Holabird & Roche

An ‘example of the Ch1cago School of
Architecture featuring a f1ne1y crafted
© terra cotta exter1or :

-B6-7: Restricted Central Business

_ District
Maximum of 16

The site is served by all nine CTA rapid
transit routes and numerous bus 1ines.

There are two subway stations within a half
biock. A1l four commuter rail stations
are less than a mile away. Private and
public parking is available in the immediate
area.

See Exhibit A

See Exhibits B - E

The Department of.Planning
J. Geoffrey Block

(312) 744-7221
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8. Statement of Significance
Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
[ nationally [ statewide Xiocaity

Applicabie National Register Criteria [ JA [ ]B [XJc []D

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ _JA [_]B [:]c_ o [Je [OOF [Je

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) " Period of Significance Significant Dates
_Architecture 1912 1212 i
Cultural Affiliation 57
N/A 'j
:
él
S{gpifioant Porson ArchitecyBulider
Holabird, William, and Roche, Martin i

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria conalderations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
The AM. Rothschild & Co. Store fulfills Criterion C for 1isting on the National Register of Historic
Places. The Rothschiid's Building exenplifies both the history of Chicago and the history of the Chicago School ‘
of Architecture. A late design by the prominent Holabird & Roche Firm, the building is a remarkably intact |
example of the commercial pr'incip'les of Chicago School design, carbined with the classical a*‘narrentamm in favor |
duing the heyday of Burnham's Plan for Chicago, released in 1909. i
The building i1lustrates an inportant social and economic story that is part of the history of Chicago. |
Built by an expanding firm, taken over by another State Street retailer eleven years later, and then assumed |
by a neighborhood retailer a decade later, the Rothschild's Store 11lustrates both the consistencies and charges:
experienced by Chicago retailing -in the twentieth century. Designed as an attractive complement to the Second
Leiter building to its south, Rothschild's occupies an important site in the history of State Street. :
' State Street grew after the Great Fire of 1871 to became the comnercia) heart of Chicage; the imagnet i!
where 1ts citzenry thronged to shop, stroll, browse, be elevated and entertained. Here in the center of the 51
country, far distant from foreign markets, the goods of America and the world were disglayed. . The State Street ‘
department stores, at their height, lined both sides of eight city blocks, from Congress: Street to Randolph |
Street. Nowhere in America was there a bigger continuous strip of major retail department stores. The Rothschild's g‘!
building is one of four major store buildings that survive. i
|
|
|
\

- Department stores required the large glass display windows mede possible by the skeletal frame construction !
and open facades of the commercially-oriented Chicago School of Architecture. The display windows of State

Street were an outdoor museun vhere the populace walked, observed, enjoyed and purchased goods. The windows

of State Street vere windows to the world, 2 pramse of the delights that could be won through hard work in
the Chicago Stockyards, steel mills and railroads. They were also evidence that Chicago had become a world
class city, capable of emulating Paris in its 1909 plan.

The history of State Street is a dramtic parellel and microcosm of the history of Chicago. Originally
"State Road", the street attained its commercial character in the late 1860s when Potter Paimer and Marshall |
Field decided to invest in State Street, away from the primary retail merket along Lake Street. But Lake Street |
was unpaved, and spring mud helped fashionable shoppers rove with Field, Palwer and Levi Laiter to State Street ;
in 1868, Potter Palmer erected the Palmer House on the Street, and two young Scots, Sam Carson and J.T.Pirie, |
together with George and Robert Scott set up a modest retail establishment on State Street in 1866. The Mandel J

|

Brothers, Leon, Simon and Enmanuel, expanded their dry goods and notions business into a wholesale !

"] See continuation sheet
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and retail dry goods store on State Street by 1870.

After the Great Fire of 1871, all of these retailers returned 10 rebuild State Street. E.J. Lehmann brought
his Fair Store here, and Henry Lytton joined the merchants with The Hub Store, and Sears and Roebuck followed,
By the 1913 construction of the Rothschild’s building, State Street had created a retail character envied worldwide.

State Street and ils mystique have been described by many writers over the years, In “Chicago: A Portrait”
written by Henry Justin Smith in 1931, at the height of the depression, the mood of State Street, termed The Street
of Bazaars by Smith, comes barreling through: . :

“The street suggests a tremendous railroad cut; or a very deep river bed with six streams,

two of which, on each sidewalk, flow in opposite courses, under the crags, while the other

two swirl north and south in the central channel. The middle stream are composed of

streetcars, automobiles, and here and there a tall truck. The outer ones are people and nothing else;

people on foot, tireless, open-eyed, almost breathless with pursuit of something or other,

going somewhere or other, sweeping up and down this gorge with a tread that must thunder

the depths of earth. Has there been a vast mass meeting or an athletic meet attended by

half a million? No,this tremendous tramping of feet, and the clamor of voices, and th

~ . panicof bells, and eerie whistlings, is nothing to get in the newspapers.. .
- It's merely Saturday afternoon - on State Street...

The great bazaars spread their windows all along the chasm. The people walk by a mile
of glass. They swim like fish whose noses press against panesleading to a brighter world,
in which are costumes draped on modernistic models, and pianos and drawing-room sets,
and carved radio sets, and jewels, and hosiery and paintings; and washing machines, and
oil heaters, and ship models, and bonbons...”

- Abram M. Rothschild was born in Germany in 1853 and emigrated to America in 1866 to Davenport,
lIowa where he joined his brother Emanuel in business. Young Abram worked in his brother's store for several
years until he was taken into the firm which became known as E. Rothschild & Brothers at the age of 19. He
worked for the firm during the day and attended school at night. At the time of the Great Fire of 1871, Rothschild
saw the possibilities that would result from the reconstruction of the city so they apened a branch retail house in
Chicago. This venture was extremely successful and caused the Rothschilds to expand into clothing manufacture.

In the late 1800s Abram Rothschild organized and established the Rothschild & Company department
store at State and Van Buren Streets, in partnership with meat packers Nelson, Edward and Ira Morris. In 1882
Abram married Gusta Morris, Nelson’s daughter. The Rothschild store differed from other establishments in that
it was organized as a complete department store from its inception, carrying all varieties of merchandise. Its
competitors has been established as dry goods and clothing stores which gradually added additional depariments
as demand required. To completely equip a department store with all lines of merchandise from the beginning was
an immense project,

Rothschild’s was an instant success. By 1900 it occupied a series of interconnected buildings including a
five-story structure by Holabird & Roche at State and Van Buren Streets, The growth of the firm was so great
during the following decade that the buildings were deemed obsolete and replaced in 1912 by the present struc-
lure, also by Holabird & Roche. :

In 1923 the Rothschild & Company store and facilities were purchased by Marshalil Field & Company,
who operated it as a moderate cost department store called the Davis Store. In 1936 the store was sold to
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Goldblatt Brothers, owners of a chain of moderate-price department stores in neighborhoods throughout Chicago.

This marked a change in Chicago retailing, for here a neighborhood merchant was moving to the downtown center
of retail, as opposed to a major downtown store like Marshall Field's constructing suburban outlets. The
Goldblatts continued to successfully operate the store as their flagship and State Street presence until 1981, when
it joined a growing list of State Street institutions that could not survive the rise of suburban shopping malls and
the “Magnificent Mile" retail strip on North Michigan Avenue. As the Goldblatt's flagship, the store was excel-
lently maintained, which accounts for the virtually intact condition of the seventy-seven year old structure.

The Rothschild's Building represents the only example of a Holabird & Roche design of a full-block
department store. The building illustrates both the principles of the Chicago School and the transition occurring
in architecture, that would continue with the historicist variations of the early 1920s. It retains its originai design
with great integrity, and provides a clear example of an important historical moment in the history of Chica ga's
architecture,

“When we examine the work of Holabird & Roche in the twentieth century, we shall see a continuation of

the same characteristics...some critics have complained that after the Marquette (1893-4), their building reveal a

- monatonous repetition of a hackneyed formula. - But those critics fail to appreciate the value of a true standard in
architecture... The work of Holabird & Roche is not a sterile repetition; it represents detailed variation within the
achievements of a stable form.” [Carl Condit, The Chicago School of Architecture, p. 126}

The Chicago architectural firm of Holabird and Roche, which designed many of the significant commer-
cial and public buildings in Chicago, was founded in 1880 as Holabird and Simmonds. In 1881 the founders,
architect William Holabird (1865-1923) and landscape architect Ossian C. Simmonds were joined by Martin
Roche (1855-1927) and the firm renamed itself Holabird, Simmonds and Roche. Two years later, with the depar-
ture of Simmonds, the name was changed to Holabird and Roche, and their partnership lasted until 1927.

William Holabird and Martin Roche both came out of the office of William LeBaron Jenney, the architect
who designed the first skeletal-frame skyscraper. During their partnership the firm designed 72 major buildings in
the central commercial area of Chicago. Among their designs was the Tacoma Building erected at Madison and
LaSalle Streets in 1889, demolished in 1929 and recognized as an early exemplar of the Chicago School of Archi-
tecture. A number of the firm’s landmarks survive, including the Old Colony Building (1894), the Marquette
Building (1894, cornice removed), the Monadnock Building addition (1893), and the Chicago Building (1905).

Although ornamentation and period styles became increasingly influential, the ideas of the first Chicago
School of Architecture didn't die overnight:

“There is the Mandel Building for instance, in which the facts of the case are modified by converting the
front into a columnal composition of two story base, ten story shaft and three story capital. But does it really look
any better for the variations? Unless those three upper stories have some different use and function from those of
the square openings below them, the “architecture” is a “suggested falsity” which detracts from the appearance of
grim reality that belongs to the simpler building. Perhaps the full arcade of the lower stage of the Rothschild
Building has more logical justification, since the first story of a big department store may and sometimes must be
loftier that the stories superimposed upon it.” [Franz Winkler, “Some Chicago Buildings Represented by the
Work of Holabird and Roche”, Architectural Record, April, 1912, pp. 318-22.]

It has been argued that Holabird and Roche most completely represented the achievement of the main-
stream of the Chicago School of Architecture, and the Rothschild’s Building adds to our understanding of how the
firm evoived into the twentieth century. They discovered the simplest utilitarian solutions to problems presented
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by the design of large office blocks. ‘Holabird and Roche took these solutions and developed a rational and
standardized form adaptable to the conditions imposed by the crowded central business district. A major conse-
quence of this formuia was that the original principles of the Chicago School survived longer in their work than
that of any other architectural firm. |
“Frank clarity and exactitude are the products of uniformity of treatment, the reduction of decorative . ;
detail to narrow mouldings and the presence of big Chicago windows in the small facades...it is to their credit that - l\
they rendered unnecessary a fresh act of imagination with every commission, imagination and individual €Xpres- « ‘
sion are vital to a living culture, but we should remember with Whitehead that ‘Civilization (also) advances by ex- .
tending the number of important operations we can perform without thinking about them.” [Carl Condit, The ' ‘
Chicago School of Architecture, 1964, pp. 125-6] . ' ' i;
|
|
|

To understand the historic significance of the Rothschild’s building, we must consider the context of State oo
Street. Atone end of the street stood Marshall Field & Company’s store at State and Washington. The existing Ei
structure was completed by Daniel Burnham’s architecture firm between 1902 and 1914, but Field and his partner !
Levi Leiter has three previous buildings on the site, dating to before the Great Fire of 1871, South of this full- . |
' block edifice lies the Stevens Building, a 1912 product of the Burnham firm that stands 19 stories 1all. ' - r
' Further south, the former Wieboldt’s building at One North State was designed by Holabird & Roche ' .,
berween 1900 and 1905 as the Mandel Brothers Department Store, although it was insensitively remodeled in 1977 5‘
$0 that only its upper stories betray its historic character. Immediately south is one of Chicago’s greatest land-
marks, Louis Sullivan’s Carson Pirie Scott department store, built between 1899 and 1906, Sullivan combined the - '
frank expressionism of the Chicago School on the upper stories with some of the most ornate architectural o
ornament in the world at street level. Across the street stands the Chicago Building by Holabird & Roche, the
only structure by this firm that remains as intact as the Rothschild’s Building.
At Jackson and State Streets stood another grest retailer, the Lytton’s store built in 1913 by Marshall &
Fox, which reached nineteen stories. South again lies the Rothschild's store, a massive structure that serves to
illustrate the transition from the radical architecture of the Chicago School to the historical referents of '
Burnham's plan and the “Beaux-Arts” revival in architecture. Rothschild’s has the facade organization of Carson ;
Pirie Scott combined with the classical ornament of Lytton’s. An important department store for decades, - 5\
Rothschild’s was accessed directly from the elevated “Loop” railroad by shoppers, and its bargain basements |
presaged the evolution of the modern discount store. _ o, |
South of Rothschild’s State Street had its final major department store, William LeBaron Jenney's Second -
Leijter Building, known primarily as Sears Roebuck and Co. during its long history. Built in 1890, it is the oldest of
ali the State Street buildings, and is the most frank expression of Chicago School functionalism.- Sears also had
direct elevated access, Of these State Street structures, the Second Leiter Building, Carson Pirie Scott & Co., the
Chicago Building and Marshall Field store are listed on the National Register of Historic Places. ‘The Rothschild’s _
Building shares with these structures its association with an important architectural firm of the Chicago School
and its role in the history of State Street as a retailing center for Chicago,
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Verbal Boundary Description _

South half of Lot 2, Sub-lots 1 an 2 of Lot 3, Sub-lots 1 and 2 of Lot 6, Sub-lots _‘
1 and 2 of Lot 7 and Sub-lots 1 and 2 of Lot 10 (except for the west 27 feet taken |
for widening of State Street) in Block ‘7 in Fractional Section 15 Addition to Chicago, . "
in Township 39 North, Range 14 East of the Th1rd Princ1pa1 Meridian in Cook County, I11inois. "

EISu continuation sheet
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|
Boundary Justification |

The boundary includes and is limited to the boundary of the historic structure as
described in the nomination form above.
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